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' o . MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
‘ (A company.limited by guarantee) '

GOVERNORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Governors (who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies.Act) present their annual
report together with theaudited financial statements and auditor's report of Mitton Manor Primary Academy (the
Academy) for the period ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Governors’
report, and a Directors’ report under company law. :

Mitton Manor Prrmary Academy is currently a single school academy which came into being following conversion
effective 1st January 2014. The school is a single entry Primary school covering Key Stages 1 and 2. The school

is located in the Mitton area of Tewkesbury in Gloucestershire. It has a normal capacity of 210 and for the
2020/2021 school year supported a number on roll of 204,

Structure, governance and management

‘ a. Constitution

The Academy became a company Iirrtited by guarantee and an exempt charity on 27 November 2013.

~+ The charitable company‘s.Mernorandhm of Association is the primary governing document of the Academy.- -

‘The Governors of Mitton Manor Prrmary Academy are also the directors of the charrtable company for the
purposes of company law.

- The charitable company is known as Mitton Manor Primary Academy.

Details of the Governors who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are rncluded
ih the Reference and administrative detalls on page 1.

The Trust operates as an Academy for pupils aged 4-11 serving a catchment area of Mitton. It has a-pupil
capacity of 210 and had a roll of 204 in the school census on 30 January 2021.

b. Members' Ilabrlrty

Each -member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
. amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and Irabulltres contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

. » ' - Page 3



MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
."(A company limited by guarantee)”

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (cojntinhed) a

c. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Governors |

Directors are appoifited under the'terms of the articles of Association to ensure a broad skill base is

covered. .

The Board of the Directors should be no great than 18 and is made up of the followmg

a. . Up to 8 Directors appointed under article 50 (The members may appoint up to 8 Governors)
b Up to 3 Academy Directors (Members who must not be Trustees) : o

c. The Headteacher -

d. 2 Parent Directors

e. \ Uptod co-opted Governors

For the year ending 31st August 2021 the Governing Body consists of
6 Members

-2 Parent Governors

" 1 Staff (Head Teacher)

.1 Co-opted Governors-
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:. . T VVM|TT0N MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
. ’ * (A company limited by guarantee) -

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED):
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and 'mana'gement_ (contin ued)

d. Current appointm_ent of Governors through the Articles of Association

‘. The Members may appoint up to 8 Governors
. The Members may appoint Staff Governors through such process as they may determine.
.. The total number of Governors (including the Head Teacher's) who are employees of the Academy Trust
shall not exceed one third of the total number of Governors.
e The Parent Governors shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy A parent governor
"~ - . must be a parent of a pupil at the Academy at the time when they are elected.
. »= " The Governing Body shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine all other. matters relating

to, an election of Parent Governors, including any question of whether a person is a parent of a registered
4 pupil at the Academy. Any election of Parent governors which is contested shall be held by secret ballot.
. The arrangements made for the election of a Parent Governors shall provide for every person who is
entitled to vote in the election to have an opportunity to do so by post or, if they prefer, by having there
. ballot paper returned to the Academy Trust by a registered pupil at the Academy.
». . Where a vacancy for a Parent Governor is required to be filled by election, the Governing Body shall take
' such steps as are reasonably practical to secure that every person who is known to them to be-a parent of
- aregistered pupil at the Academy is informed of the vacancy and that it is required to be filled by election,
informed that he is entitled to stand as a candidate, and vote at the election, and given'an opportunity to

do so.
. The number of parent governors required shall be made up by Parent Governors appointed by the’
. Governing Body if the number of parents standing for election is less than the number of vacancies.
. In appointing a Parent ‘Governor the Governlng Body shall appoint a person who is the parent of a

registered pupil at the Academy; or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is a parent
of a child of compulsory school age. .

. CO OPTED GOVENORS - The governors may appoint Co-opted Governors. A ‘Co-opted Governor’
means a person who'is appointed to be a Governor by being Co-opted by Governors who have not
themselves been so appointed. The Governors may not co-opt an employee of the academy Trust as a

- Co-opted Governor if thereby the number of Governors who are employees of the Academy Trust would
exceed one third of the total number of Governors (including the Headteacher)
« - Staff Trustees are currently voted onto the Governing Body via school vote. New guidelines (Academies

* . Financial Handbook section1.3.6) state that whilst the members can decide whether to appoint the trusts

senior executive leader (accounting officer) as a Trustee, the Departments strong preference is for no
other employees to serve as a trustee in order to retain clear lines of accountability. In light of this the Full
Governing Body will discuss current staff representation. Staff representatives will no longer attend
meetings in the role of a Trustee but will attend subcommittee meetings to provide their expertlse and
continue the link between strategic Trustees and the operational team
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee) , . i

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structu‘re,‘ governance and management (continued) A

- e. Policies and Procedures adopted for the Induction and training of Trustees

Training and induction for governors will depend on prior experience and or knowledge. Most induction is carried
out in house but external trainers may be brought in or Governors may., attend external training provision as
appropriate. - An induction package has been produced which is provided to all new Governors, they will also be
assigned a mentor from the existing Governors to help them through the process. . All new Governors are
expected to attend training provided by the Local Authority Governors Sérvices or Tewkesbury District
Partnership. .Governors are. also expected to undergo mandatory Safeguarding training which is facilitated
through the Academy. Governors are provided with all the documents they need to undertake their role as well
"have having internet access to resources through the Key for Governors. -

Regular skills audits for the Governors are carried out in order to |dent|fy any areas of weakness in order for
appropnate training or mentoring to be identified.

Mitton Manor Primary Academy have recruited 2 Academy Ambassadors following recommendation from the
ESFA. Advertisement was through Academy Ambassadors and recruitment took place during Spring term 2021.

f. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration. of key management personnel

The Head Teacher and various members of staff are responsible for arranging Performance Management
- meetings twice a year; the initial meeting is to discuss progress and set objectives and targets. ‘These are then
discussed at a mid-year review and a recommendation will be made with regard to pay scales.
Recommendations will be discussed and agreed at a Finance and Personnel committee meeting and then,
ratified at the Full Governing Body. Whilst the Governors and the Finance Committee are able to determine pay
" scales for a Headteacher, the Headteachers pay is set on appointment using national scale guidelines whenever
possible. Performance Managements for the Head Teacher are carried out by-a member and a maximum of 2
governors. The member. and the trustees are responsible for setting and agreeing the targets for the
. headteacher and for completing a mid-year rewew

Pay scales are determmed through the school Pay Policy which is set using recommendations from
Gloucestershire County Council. The pay policy is set using guidance and recommendations from the School
Teachers Pay and Conditions Document and Conditions of Service for School Teachers in England and Wales.

"Members of the Senior management team also receive Performance management reviews from Line Managers
within school. These again discuss and set objectives for the year. The previous year's objectives are reviewed
in September and these will determine whether the SMT member will receive any pay increments (these are set

. against Government gmdellnes and pay scales are .determined through Gloucestershire County Council).

Performance -Management reviews are then discussed with the Head Teacher and pay increments. will be

reported to the Finance Committee for ratification. .

g. Trade Union Facility time

Under the provisions of the Trade Union Facility Time Publication Reqmrements) Regulations 2017 where an
academy trust has more than 49 fulltime equivalent employees, information must be published. -

Mitton Manor Primary School has less than 49 full time equivalent employees, therefore, this does not apply.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

‘ Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Connected organisations, inc.l'uding related party and relationships

At present Mitton Manor Primary School is the only organisation related to Mitton Manor Primar,y Academy. !

Trustees Indemnities
Trustees benefit from mdemnlty insurance purchased through the RPA scheme at the Academy Trust Governors
L|ab|I|ty Expense.

Governors Liability Expense
" The' RPA Administrator will subject to the Defi mtlons Extensnons Exclusnons and Conditions of the Rules
indemnify

1. The Member in respect of Iosses arising as a result of mdemmfymg an Indemmf ed Person in accordance
: with its legal obligations, for Loss arising from Claims made against the Indemnlfled Person, durmg a
- membership year.
2.. - AnInactive Academy Trust that is a former member in respect of losses arising as a result of indemnifying
- an indemnified Person in accordance with its legal obligations, for Loss arising from Claims made against
the Indemnified Person, during a Membership year or any subsequent penod up to the pomt the Inactive
Academy Trust is dissolved .

Provided always the RPA Admlnlstrator shall not be liable for any claim where the cause of such claim occurred
or that was alleged. to have occurred prior to the date of the signing of the funding agreement for the relevant
academy. To the extent that an indemnity is provided by an insurance policy, for claims that the Member had
prior knowledge of béfore opting to join the RPA and for clalms from an Inactive Academy trust that was not a
member at the point in time that it became inactive.

Limit of L|ab|I|ty
| The RPA limit of liability in respect of each academy shall be £10, 000 00 each and every loss and shall be the
. maximum aggregate liability of the RPA Administrator from all losses from and academy whose Academy Trust -
‘is a Member during any one membershtp year. -
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
© . (Acompany limited by guarantee) ;. . ..
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GOVERNORS"REPORT (CONTINUED)
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

{continued)

Objectivities and activities
a. Objects and aims

" The .pr|n0|pa| object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managmg and developing a school, offerlng a
broad range of curriculum for puplls of different abilities.

The principal object and activity of the Charitable Company is the operat|on of Mltton Manor Prlmary School .-
Primary Academy to provude free education and care for puplls of different abllltles between the ages of 4 and. -

1.

At Mltton Manor Prlmary School our vnsmn of the education of our pupils is. clear ‘Try, Enjoy, Achieve and
Move Forward’. Our ‘TEAM' motto underpins every aspect of school life. and is key to ensurmg high Ievels of

motivation, enthu5|asm and exmtements in Iearnlng .

TRY . We strive to do our best and persevere even when faced with a challenge

) 4ENJOY : We enjoy learning and make the most of the experlences that are on offer
; o to us. .
By worklng hard we make ‘progress and achieve the goals that we set for -
ACHIEVE
ourselves. .

MOVE FORWARD We do not rest on our laurels-and are always Iooking for ways to improve.

The Head Teacher along with the Senior Management Team complete a school development plan for
the academic year. This is then reviewed throughout the year to ensure objectives are being met.
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company llmlted by guarantee)

S

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)

KEY FOCUS FOR 2020/21

® To develop leadership at all levels including governance to ensure
Priority 1 - a-relentless focus on-school improvement 5
.y ¢ Establish effective systems to momtor and evaluate strategic
Effectiveness of
Leadership and |eadership R
Management. e To strengthen accountability through clearly deflned roles and
e - responsibilities and robust challenge :
_ o To further develop a whole school safeguarding culture
* Quality of teaching and learning to be consistently good ensuring
~ " ALL children are not disadvantaged by the school closure asa .
result of COVID 19 lockdown. -
Priorit.y 5 * Toraise standards across the Curriculum to prowde a balance and
Qualiiy of rich standard of learmng . N | '
Education ®*  To narrow the gap between attainment of dlsadvantaged and
other and to target SEND’s children’s development and narrow the
gap with those of no SEND. '
* To ensure assessment procedures and systems are used effectuvely
to make sure all children make expected or more progress in
English and Maths each term with a focus on greater depth pupils
e Toimprove rates of attendance and punctuallty and reduce rates of
Priority 3 - lateness.
Pereonél * To promote a healthy lifestyle i in school mcIudmg emotlonal phyS|caI
and mental well being
Development
e To further develop a pastoral curriculum that mcorporates a culture of
reflection and achievement including SMSC Brltlsh Values PSHE and
_ new RSE curriculum.
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*MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY  *
' (A company limited by guarantee) .

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued) -

e To monltor and |mprove attitudes of Iearmng to develop . .
independence and resilience.

* To continue to involve and expand parent engagement to ensure
their knowledgeable and work in partnership. wrth their
children’s learning

e To ensure that staff are aware of the changes that will be made
to the Early Years Framework and are ready to use them for
planning, teaching and assessment for September 2021 )

" e . Toensure that there is effective monitoring of groups of pupils

. to ensure that they are making progress with a particular focus

{ Priority 5 — Early ‘on summer.born and EAL puplls :

Years o . e To develop the continuous provision in Early Years and introduce -
continuous provision to Year 1 to ensure that the needs.of the
Early Years and Year 1 children are targeted and 'rnet,'a_s well as
creating a smooth transition from the EYFS to-the National
Curriculum ‘ ‘

-e ' To further develop the partnershlp with Mitton pre- -school to
ensure assessment and practice develops an effective transition

Priority 4 -
Behaviour and
Attitudes

The Governors use the following key measures to assess the success of the activities of the company;

e The School Development PIan ’

e Self-Evaluation Form

e DATA bench marking and SATS resuits

e Findings and observations from external assessors and moderators

e Performance Management o

e Termly Head teacher reports and performance ‘management process
. Financial monitoring through internal scrutiny, respon5|ble officer visits and SBM monthly
*" and termly reports ' -
- o Risk Register

e Legal Register

b. Public benefit

.The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due
regard to the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties.

They have referred to this guidance when revrewmg the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future
activities.

Page 10



4 n — g g

-

MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)
Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance
a. Key performance indicators

The SDP for 2020/21 |dent|f ies’ the followmg as our Key Performance indicators for the year (please see
Objectlves Strategies and Activities for more information)

-éOfsted outcomes and analysis of Data sets provnde good indicators as to how well the school is achlevrng in
‘aims to provide the best possible education. for every child. This will be achieved by improving the quality of
) teachmg and Iearmng and thus ensuring every pupil achieves thelr full potential

AThe 'school -uses' the followmg sets of information for self—evaluation purposes and to inform school'
|mprovement . -

’ Puprt Progreéss data
~Quality of teaching
- Attendance figures
Behaviour reports
Parent Questionnaire outcomes

. Attendance data

-, Pupils-attendance contmues to be the strength of the school. The overall attendance rate is above the national
average at 97.5%. -

Summary of FMR :
The. Academy'’s funding Agreement is not subject to a specific carry forward limit on the amount of the GAG
" funding, the main performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet and, in-particular, the

amount of GAG funding carried forward at the balance sheet date: At31st August 2019, the balance of the GAG '
restricted fund was £62 735. .

Puprl Numbers :

As the majority of the Academy'’s funding is based on pupil numbers, this is also a key performance indicator.

Pupil numbers reported for the 20/21 annual budget was 206 pupils against PAN number of 210.

Staff Costs - :

Finally.staff costs are another Key Performance Indicator for the Academy and the percentage of total staff costs
: to GAG funding for the period was 94%.

Standards and Achievement Results compared to National from 2020/2021 are not available for this period due
to lock down, COVID 19 and non attendance of school children. ' :

We have included the 2018/2019 Standards and Achievement results

The following tables show details of the attainment levels in Key stages 1 and 2 for 2018-2019.:

- Page 11



 MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee) '

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)

Key Stage 1:
' Reading . Writing Maths
School National LA School | National LA School ‘National LA
[y N .
Expected or 77% 75% 75% 67% 69% 67% 83% 76% 75% }
above ALL ] : . e
Expected or - 1o ©71% " eae 62% | ¢ 77% | -74% -75%
.| above MALE '71/’ . - 63% . i
Expected or _ 79% | ' | 73% 88% 77% 74%
above . 88% - 80% 88% 7% |- ~
FEMALE ) . . .
Greater " am o | 26% [ 5 e 15% 20% 22% 21%
Depthall | -~ 33% 26% - 20% 16% S .
Greater - . 23% | . . 10% 23% T 24% | 23%
Depth MAL_E 23% 22% . - 15% 12% - . .
Greater . 29% . 18% 17% 20% 19%
Depth 41% 29% 23% 20%
FEMALE L :
‘ Key Stage 2:
Average SS % Scored Lower than % Achieved Scaled % Greater Dep'tl'i'
' : 100 Score or Higher o
LA Nationa | Schoo | LA Nation | Schoo | LA | Nationa | Schoo | LA Nationa | Schoo
: | | al B ) 1 Bi - 11
Rea din 104 - 106 104 | 25% - | 13% 75 73% 83% | 30 27% 27%
e | " ‘ NN | %
106 106 107 | 22% - 13% |77 | 78% | 83% | 34| 36% | 33%
GPS | a Tl % % T
; ST - .
- 105 105 104 | 22% - 17% 78 | "79% | 80% | 25 27% -23%
Maths ‘ [ % ' % :
. - - - 20% - | 20% 78 78% 87% | 20 20% 20%
Writing | % | - %
: - - - - - - 65 65% 77% 10 11% 10%
RWM % %
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~ MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)

Standards and Achievements from 2020-2021 compared to National 2018-2019

Key Stage 1: -
Reading . Writing Maths
School Natulona A School Natllona LA School National A
: 750, 0 o/ 0
| Expected or C 76% 25% 75% 69% 67% 76% 75%
above ALL : :
Expected.or | 71% 62% 74% 75%
above 74% 71% : 63% -
MALE
Expected or ‘ 79% 73% 77% - 74%
above 79% 80% 77% . '
FEMALE - , _ ,
Greater o o 26% o 15% - 22% 21%
Depth ALL 36% 26% , 16% ' | A
Greater 23% 10% 24% 23%
Depth 27% 22% C12%
MALE
Greater . 29% S .18% 20% 19% -
_ Depth 46% 29% 20%
FEMALE '
. \\ . ) .
Key Stage 2: 2020-2021 End of Year results compared to 2018-20219 National/LA
% Scored Lower than 100, % Achieved Scaled Score or | % Greater Depth
Higher ‘
LA National | School LA | National School LA National School
o 25% - . 25% 75% 73% - 74% | 30% 27% 22%
Reading , 3 e
. ( ) . >
Maths "22% - 78% . 79%_ 25% 27%
Writing 20% - 78% : 78%' 20% 20% 22%
RWM - : - 65% 65% % | 10% 11% %
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)

KEY FOCUS FOR 2021/22

OUR SCHOOL PRIORITIES

Priority 1- Effectiveness of Leadership and Management
e  To develop leadership at aII levels mcludmg governance to ensure a re|entless focus on school
" improvement . . .
e To ensure all senior management team are aware of and implement systems to monitor and evaluate
learning-across the school 7
To further develop a whole schoo! safeguarding culture

Priority 3 — Personal Development

e To promote a healthy lifestyle in school including emotional, physical and mental well being
of pupils, parents and staff :

e To further develop opportunities across the school to enable puplls to develop leadership
skills and ownership of their Iearnmg

Priority 4 - Behavuour and Attitudes

o

of others
e To continue to monitor to involve and expand parent engagement to ensure their
\ knowledgeable and work in partnership with their children’s’learning

‘e Tomonitorand i |mprove attitudes of Iearnmg to develop respect and valulng their work and ,
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

(continued)

Priority 5 — Early Years

¢ To investigate the new EYFS expectations and Framework
e To further develop and improve quality of assessment and implement the on-entry baseline,
e To promote and further develop strategies to prowde a high standard of contlnuous
provision, . e UL
Pnoruty 6 ESFA Financial Rlsks .

.o Toinvestigate and develop whole school WIFI system to improve effectiveness.
e _ To establish and develop self-generated income to improve the schools provisions.
e Toreview and improve surplus budget in order to reduce risk of budget deficit.

b. Going concern ‘

The Governors and staff of Mitton Manor Primary Academy have invested both time and money |n the continuing
improvement of the learning environment for puplls and work environment for staff.

Future plans include more improvement to learning. ICT, developing more opportunmes for outdoor learning
(Forest Schools), creating links with other partnerships and schools to promote and develop practice, continue to
partner with Pre School to ensure baseline and end of year assessment meet the EYFS Framework and to
continue to promote Wellbeing for the school community.

As a charitable company Mitton is dependent on the funding arrangements with the EFA to remain as a going
concern. The staff andGgovernors have produced a detailed school development plan. This is used together
with a 3 year budget plan which is constantly being updated to reflect changes within school.

‘Financial review

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the DfE via the EFA in the form of recurrent' grants, the use of
which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31 August
2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Funding obtained through the DfE via the EFA has ensured that we have supported the key objectives identified
in our School Development Plan. Resources have been purchased to embed the new curriculum, continuing to
ensure pupils wellbeing needs are being met. .

The Academy has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect: of its non-teaching
staff transferred on conversion. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity.

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include the Finance Policy which lays out the

_ framework for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the Board, Head Teacher, managers, -
budget holders and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending. Other policies reviewed and updated-
included Charges, Lettings, Gifting, Best Value and Fraud Trustees. Mitton Manor Primary School have used
qualified trustees to provide internal scrutiny visits. They undertake a programme of internal checks on the
- financial controls. During the year, the Trustees received 1 report which contained no matters of significance.

Page 15



MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee) S

" 'GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

a. Reserves policy

The Governors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. The Governors feel it is important that
funding received during a financial year is spent for the benefit of the pupils on roll at that time, whilst recognising
the need for prudent accounting. Governors have determined that the appropriate level of free cash reserves in
any ohe year should be between 5% and 8% of income, £49,500 - £79,200. Reviewing figures for restricted and
unrestricted funds, reserves are slightly lower than the bottom end of the determined 5-8% however have
increased from the prior year. This reserves expectation will be reviewed in the new school year bearing in mind
pay awards and pension contribution increase. This ensures the going concern of the school whilst ensuring that
the pupils benefit from the funds made available to them. Any surplus over and above th|s amount is mvested in
the school improvement of learning environment and resources.

Total reserves at the end of the period are made up of the following:

Restricted funds £7,282
Restricted fixed Asset Fund £1,336,591
Pension Reserve . (E751,000)
Unrestricted Funds £34,183
TOTAL : £627,056

Within the reserves pohcy users should note that, because of the accounting for the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) the academy recognises a significant pension fund deficit of £751,000 (taken from thé FRS102
report). This deficit is included within restricted funds. This does not lead to an immediate liability for this amount.
The deficit is being dealt with by the actuary. Users should also note that a surplus or deficit position of the
pension scheme would generally result in a cash flow effect for the Academy Trust in the form of an increase or
decrease in employers’ pension contributions over a period of years. The academy trust thus takes this fact into
account.when reviewing current business plans and budgets, ascertaining how the pension costs might affect
budgets in the future. On the basis that. increased pension contributions should generally be met from the.
Academy trust budgeted annual income, whilst the deficit might not be eliminated, there should be no actual -
cash flow .deficit on the fund or direct impact on the unrestricted reserves of the Academy Trust due’ to the
recognition of the deficit. .

‘b. Investment policy

Mitton Manor Primary Academy operates a Lloyds Bank current account and any surplus cash remains in this
account in order to ensure that the school is able to meet any financial obligations.  The school does not mvest in
any other financial activity i in order to protect public money.
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- MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company Ilmrted by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

c.‘PrincipaI'risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to the
specific teaching, -provision of facilities and other operational areas of the- Academy and its finances. The
Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Academy faces, especially in the
operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips)-and in relation to the

" control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and

VISItOI’S safeguarding and child protectlon) and mternal financial controls in order to minimise.risk.
Systems currently in place to minimise fmancral risk: -

: Monthiy Finance meetmgs ‘with Head Teacher and SBM -
:‘Monthly: Finance/Budget reporting to Chair of Finance and-HT
Termly meetings with Chair of Finance Committee and SBM
- Systems ‘Audit through Randall and Payne :
Finance Regulations Manual
Financial Risk Assessment -
Risk Register
Internal Scrutiny

e e o o o o o o

Where' significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance, cover The
. Academy has a good system of lnternal controls and thls is-explained in more detail in the statement on internal
control

" The scale ‘of future funding from the DfE for Academies continues to be a major uncertainty, particularly for a
small school, where small variations in pupil numbers are critical. The Governors are aware of this uncertainty,
and are taking steps to market- and promote the school to encourage growth in pupil numbers.

The staff and Governors of Mitton Manor Prlmary School have collaboratlvely comphed a Risk Register report
" identifying the possible risks to the school, the likelihood of occurrence and the level of impact should the risk
“occur. This report. also assigns a person/group responsible for managing the risk and how the risk could.be
treated. : ' o
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- MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY . -
(A company limited by guarantee)

~ GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t AUGUST 2021 -

The areas of risk have been identified and encompass the following: _

| Specific] (ControlProceduresfand[Migrating’Actions} \Who

Finance- Reduction in Marketing of spaces in school, using forecast SBM HT

pupil numbers | information to determine admission numbers | Admin’

Finance coviD Loss of.income due to breakfast club and.lettings .| SBM. -
pandemic - is on radar and DfE COVID grants applied forto .« |.HT~ -, -
risk of the compensate towards part of this loss of income | GOVS
impact COVID s ' B I
will have on
the school : _ . .

Finance Risk that regularly review budgets and processes alongside. | SBM-
budget will be | relevant staff, Trustees. Reports to Trustees - |.HT -
in deficit ‘ - 1B & A'Com

Finance Lack of There is no reserves policy in place this causesa | 'SBM - '
reserves policy | concern due to potential deficit budget and high | HT.

percéntage of staff expenditure
Staff Morale SLT
low impacting | - | GOVs
on ‘Staff wellbeing to be reviewed regularly in line

Leadership | performance with performance management
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(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Lack of

SLT
understanding All Staff
of current SIp
legislation and .
children's
vulnerabilities . : :
within a school | SEND review completed by SIP (October 2020)
setting, resulted in recommendations to improve systems .
particularly -for My Plans and informing parents. Parent

: concerning questionnaire completed and further
Leadership | SEND pupils improvements identified ‘
: Vision, Mission SLT
and values are o : All Staff
: not sufficiently | Stakeholders to be able to |dent|fy schools vision
Leadership | clear and values
: | Lack of SLT aware of the poor Wi-Fi system in school this SLT
efficient speed | needs to be reviewed and will have budget
and connection | implications
impacts ' :
leadership and
Teaching and
| Learning
Leadership outcomes
| Members and. HT
trustees have SLT
insufficient Ensure induction for four new trustees is effective | All Govs
, experience and | and tramlng is provided to the whole board to fulfil
Governance | expertise the skills audit
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. GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

-| Governance

Members and
trustees have
insufficient
experience and
expertise ..

Ensure induction for four new trustees is effective
and training is provided to the whole board to fulfil
the skills audit :

HT
SLT
All Govs

Governance

Lack of
availability/poor
attendance at
meetings:
Quality .of
reporting to the
Board of -
trustees in
orderto aid

good decisions .

Schedule of meetihgs in place and issued at the'
start of each year. Minutes to records absence of
trustee. Chair of committee-to follow up on the

HT
SLT
All Govs

The school may
lack direction,
strategy and

forward

planning which
canlead to

reactive and not

proactive -
decisions

per5|stent absence of individual trustees.

HT'f’
SLT

© | All Govs -

‘| Governance

HR

Senior'

Management . |

capability - all
staff and ;
governance .

Further training needed on question and challenge

robust selection process in place, succession
planning for development of leaders

SLT

.

This report will be reviewed on an on-gomg basis and any lssues WI" be raised W|th|n the Fmance commlttee of
the governing body. .

Fundraising

. Due to Covid restrictions we have been unable to raise any funds. through fundralsmg This will be revnewed and . o

I

a plan in place for when restrictions ease.

W
K3
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by.guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Plans for Future Periods
Emerging prioritise identified within the SDP 2020-2021

OUR SCHOOI. PRIORITIES

Priority 1 - Effectiveness of Leadership and Management L

r )
. voe *
: e To develop leadership at all levels mcludlng governance to ensure arelentless focus on school !
! lmprovement . 0 : . . "
v J e ¥ To.ensure all senior management team are aware of and Implement systems to momtor and evaluate ﬁ
learnmg across the School . G . coan _‘;
" 7 *To further develop a whole school safeguardmg culture o '

; EREOEI VI }.lurﬂn' 5% .pp[\ﬂ'[-]n -

3 Onlaleig ~ ctny

RIS SEH STEIE LIRS} Lo SRR T SRS

ot g8, ol oo

TOGCTSN) R T BT TR Sl U U TTRETTH ST L AU T SO

N URSS TN ) _ - R
Priority 3 — Personal Development - ’ )

e Topromote a healthy lifestyle in school including emotional, physwal and mental well being of pupils,

parents and staff

e To further develop opportunities across the school to enable puplls to develop Ieadershlp skills and

»__ownership of their learning. . o : .
Priority 4 Behawour and Attitudes . . N
0l". #
.

To monitor and improve attitudes of leafning to develop réspect and valuing their work and of others

4 e To continue to monitor to involve and expand parent erigagement to ensure their knowledgeable and'
] ‘work in partnershlp with their chlldren s learmng ok : .
s Prlorlty 5~ Early Years * " i . s ) Ve
.- ' e Tdinvestigate the new EYFS eXpectations and Framework . #¢
oy . To further develop and improve quality of assessment and lmplement the on-entry baseline
*

I

To promote and further develop strategies to provide a high standard of continuous provision:
Priority 6 - ESFA Financial Risks

e Toinvestigate and develop whole school WIFI system to improve effectiveness.
e To establish and develop self-generated income to improve the schools provisions.

e To review and improve surplus budget in order to reduce risk of budget deficit.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

" d.

This year in reviewing the Risk Register the School Development Plan plans has six priorities this is to ensure
our next steps are in line with the school evaluation and recognising our next steps for improvement. Governors
and the Senior Leadershrp team have also recognised the increasing financial risks therefore priority. 6 was
introduced to increase revenue and reduce the risk of budget deficit. To achieve this we aim to further promote
the school within the local communlty through advertisements and open days to ensure: gaps in pupilnumbers

are fulfilled to increase. schools pupil revenue. We will also be reviewing school provisiors-of breakfast club and ‘
after school club to identify an increase in whole school funding. We also rntend to review our Iettlngs policy.ands *

handbook, and further promote lettings within the local community to develop “further opportunltres for an .
increased income. We also will endeavour to seek to develop fundralsmg opportunltles and access school'
Grants to further allocate financial support for high prrorrty needs. :

4 ol _ .
To further improve the surplus budget and ensure that our reserves are in line wrth our polrcy we erI be regularly‘ ‘
‘reviewing our staffing structure and will endeavour to maké improvements and strategrcally evaluate cost’
effectiveness whilst ensurlng we meet the needs of the school and puprls S

All Governors will be receiving Frnance Training with Governor services to ensure knowledge and experience is
developed to further provide challenge and question at Business and Audit meetings. Allocated budgets to be
reviewed and benchmarked to ascertain areas of improvements to increase revenue and ensure a reserve of
staff monthly payment is increased from one to two months. Systems and ppractice to be further implemented to
monitor allocated budgets and report to Trustees on current spends ensuring these remain within budget and
overspends, are reported with justification.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as. the Governors are aware: .

. there is no relevant audlt information of whrch the charitable company s auditors are unaware, and -
. that Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Governors' report was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the company directors, on 6
December 2021 and signed on its behalf by: - .

Patricia Clements ' A Miss Phillipoa Jones
Chair of Trustees S : A “Accounting Officer
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY ©
' (Acompdny limited by guarantee) ., .

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility .

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Mitton Manor Primary Academy
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or Ioss .

. As Governors, we have rewewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
. competency framework for governance. :

- The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsnblllty to the Head Teacher, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and .good financial management

. and in. accordance with the requirements and respon5|b|l|t|es .assigned to it in the funding agreement between
* Mitton' Manor Primary Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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'~ GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here s'upplements that described in the Governors' report and in the
Statement of Governors' responsibilities The Board of Governors has formally met 4 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governor oL ‘ , Meetings attended ‘Outofa p055|ble
-Mrs Patricia Clements, Parent rep’ - . 5 5
Mr Andy Earnshaw ’ 1
‘Miss Caroline Lawrence, Co-opted Govemor 4 -5
" Mrs Katrina Perry 3 5.
-Mr Stuart-Morris, Parent rep 4 5.

" Mrs Melanie McCarthy Chair . 3 3.

- Mrs Lucinda Williams (formerly. Bishop) 1 2
Mr Martin Thomas 3 3
Miss Phillippa Jones, Headteacher : 5 5.

*-Mr Angus Sellwood 1 .37
‘Mrs Caroliné Baldwin 3 3
Mr Rob Kinahan 3 3
Mr Simon Woolley 2 3.

0 2

Mr Robert Milford

The Governing Body is led by the chair, elected by the Governing Body from within its membership, though
anyone who works for the school cannot stand for the office.. The chair is supported in their work by one vice
chair, who is delegated certain tasks or responsibilities. The process for election .of chair and vice chalr and their
term of office is laid down in the schools Articles of Assocnation '

The Governors are supported in their work by the Clerk to the governing Body. The Clerk is.considered an_
integral part of the governing body, although they are not entitled to vote. Their role is primarily one of providing
advice and interpretation on the regularity and administrative framework in which Governors work, preparing and
- .distributing mmutes and agenda keeping records and dealing with correspondence

'The Head Teacher of the school is responsible for day-to day management of the school The role of the
governing Body is-to provide strategic management and to act as a ‘critical friend, supporting the work of the

- - 'heéad teacher and other staff.

Gov_ernors also have a role of'monitoring the school's progress, and in setting annual targets for the school's
~ performance and for the head teacher and ensuring that the Head Teacher sets targets for other staff. -

This academic year a key focus for Governance has been to establish roles and responsibilities therefore
_tralning, workshops-and actions plan meetings have been conducted throughout the year to ensure Governance
is effective in providing strategic leadership. New Governors have been appointed to further strengthen and
- provide question and challenge in decision making within the school. The Chair, Vice chair and Head Teacher
have met regularly to review practice and establish a strong governance with all stakeholders being involved.
Workshops and training has been completed to provide further knowledge and support Governance in adhering

to expectations. ’

In addition to this, Governors have been highly- proactive and have held additional board meetings to review the
staffing structure and school requirements to ensure pupils needs were met whilst taking into consideration the

financial impact of any decnsron made .

* Governance Reviews

Each year the governing body produce a self-assessment against the governor mark framework. Governor Mark
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' GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Got/ernance (continued)

is a quality standard for School Governing Bodies in England. It was developed in 2006. The process involves an
. assessment against a detailed framework covering all aspects of the responsibilities of school governance. The .
output of this is an action plan that governors use to improve what they do. Example of actions include a skills
audit. A list of governor visits etc. The areas reviewed include: :

Organisation and Teamwork
Strategic Leadership
Recruitment and Retention
Statutory Responsibilities

SEF review.and change
Strengths and weaknesses
Principles of Good Governance .
Support and Challenge

e o o o e o o o

The impact includes supporting: -

School improvement . o 3 :
Every Child Matters ‘ : - : .
The Life of the School :

The Community

Commlttees '
Our governing body uses a committee structure to undertake their monitoring and evaluation roles. Membership
and terms of committees are determined annually. At Mitton we have a Full governing Body meeting and make
use of the following committees: Finance, Personnel and Premises and Standards and Curriculum.

The Business and Audit Committee

Patricia Clements — Elected Chair October 2019

. In consultation with the Head Teacher and Business Manager, to draft the first formal budget plan of the
~ financial year
K To establish and maintain an up to date 3 year financial plan

To consider a budget position statement including virement decisions at least termly and to report :
significant anomalies from the anticipated position to the Governing Body
- To ensure that the school operates within the Financial Regulations of the Academies Financial Manual
To monitor expenditure of all voluntary funds kept on behalf of the Governing Body
To annually review charges and remissions policies and expenses pollmes
‘To make decisions in respect of service agreements
To make decisions on expenditure following recommendations from other committees
To ensure, as far as is practical, that Health and Safety issues are appropriately prioritised
To determine whether sufficient funds are avallable for pay increments as recommended by the Head

e e e o o e @

teacher
. " In the light of the Head Teacher Performance Management Group s recommendations, to determlne
- whether sufficient funds are available for increments
«  Todraft and keep under review the staffing structure in consultation with the Head teacher
. To establish a Salary Policy for all categories of staff and to be responsible for its administration and
- review

To oversee the appointment procedure for all staff

To establish and review a Performance Management policy for all staff

To oversee the process leading to staff reductions

To keep under review staff work/life balance, working conditions and well- belng, mcludlng the monltorlng
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

. of absence. To make recommendations on personnel related expenditure to the Governing Body

. _To annually inspect (during March), the premises and grounds and prepare a statement of priorities, in
preparation for the Annual Premises liaison meeting. The inspection report to be approved by the full
governing body.
T To advise the Governing Body on priorities, including Health and Safety, for the maintenance and

- development of the school's premises

To oversee the preparation and implementation of contracts
To oversee arrangements for repairs and maintenance
To make recommendations to the Finance Committee on premises-related expendlture
In consultation W|th the Head Teacher and the Flnance Committee, to oversee prem|ses related fundmg

- bids .
"~ ¢ “To preparea lettings and charglng pohcy for the approval of the full governing body in liaison with the
" Finance Committee '.
. To oversee arrangements, mcludmg Health and Safety, for the use of school premlses by outside users,

subject to governing body policy
To establish and keep under review a Building Development Plan
To establish and keep under review-an Accessibility plan -
To ensure any necessary liaison with the Local Education Authority
" To ensure the Governors responsnbllltles are discharged regarding I|tter under the Enwronmental
Protection Act 1990

Attendance .durlng the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor . . Meetings attended Out of a possible

Patricia Clements (Chair)
Phillippa Jones ’
Melanie McCarthy
Andrew Earnshaw
Lucinda Williams

- Caroline Lawrence
Stuart Morris

. Katrina Perry

. Martin Thomas

- Angus Sellwood

- Robert Kinahan

.~ Caroline Baldwin -

Simon Woolley

Robert Milford

S WNWNWNOWN-_2WOOO
NWOBBRBAELIIOODDW-2AhOO

4 Standards and Curriculum

~Katrina Perry Chair (elected October 2019 - Re5|gned January 2020) New chair elected October 2020

. To consider and advise the governing body on standards and other matters relating to the school s
curriculum, including statutory requirements and.the School's Curriculum Policy

+  Toconsider curricular issues which have implications for Finance and Personnel decisions and to make
recommendations to the relevant committees or the Governing Body

. To make arrangements for the Governing Body to be represented at School Improvement discussions
with the LA and for reports to be received by the Governing Body

»  To oversee arrangements for individual governors to take a leading role in specific areas of provision, e.g.

' SEN, Literacy, Numeracy. To receive regular reports from them and advise the ‘Governing Body. .

. To oversee arrangements for educational visits, including the appointment of a named co-ordinator
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (cbntinued)

The Chair and the Head also meet/talk regularly to discuss issues as they happen and where necessary these
are taken to the various committees.

" Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor -

Phillippa Jones
- Katrina Perry .
‘Caroline Lawrence
Patricia.Clements -
* Melanie McCarthy"
.- Stuart Morris - -
- Lucinda Williams
Martin Thomas -
.-Angus Sellwood . -
‘Robert Kinahan
-. Caroline Baldwin-
> Simon Woolley- .
" Robert Milford

‘ Pay Sub Commlttee :

Meetings attended
3

3 Stuart Morris— Chair (elected January 2020) chanr to be elected October 2020

. Out of a possible

SNRNNNNN AW WWWWWw

'The Chair and the Head also meet/talk regularly to discuss issues as they happen: and where necessary these
are taken to the various committees. .

'AAttendance durmg the year at meetmgs was as follows

Governor -

- 'Phillippa Jones

~ 'Patricia Clements

*Staurt Morris (Chair) .
-Caroline Lawrence .-
Lucinda Williams

Meetmgs attended -

Out of a possibAIe

AN N
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As accounting ofﬁcer,' the Head Teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands. that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting -officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money -
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Governors where value for money can be |mproved
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. B

._.

The accountlng off|cer for. the academy trust has delivered improved value for money durlng the year by

. Ensuring that resources are directed where they are most needed and most effectrve in meeting .- ” _= Lt

o

, . educational requirements
. Developing the assessment, racking and monitoring processes to ensure data is used to mform planmng,
target intervention and support differentiation, including regular internal and' Senior Léadership Team
_ meetings to review progress and impact of intervention for different groups of pupils
. The Academy constantly reviews it staffing structure to ensure that staff are deployed effectlvely to
" support individual pupils and the curriculum. -
. The Academy invest highly in Inclusion Support staff, prowdlng tra|n|ng and ensurlng that SEN/FSM
children review the correct amount of support ‘
. Carrying out review of third party contracts as they become due and replacmg ‘with better value ones
where possible i.e: in the current year we have reviewed and changed suppliers for our photocopler
contract to ensure better value and service

Example of steps taken to ensure value for money when purchasing include:

» - Exploring alternative options both online and through suppliers to find the best value .

*  Working with other local schools in partnership to identify products and services that can be procured

*across a number of schools in order to drive down costs and/or negotiate favourable rate e.g.

assessments data systems, maintenance and resources.

. The Academy is part of the Local Schools partnership — each school pays an annual charge the
partnership is influential in ensuring best value that enable schools to procure training ( at a reduced rate
or free of charge), discounts for school resources.

. Constantly ensuring that we follow the tendering/quotes process as detailed in the. Academy Finance

_ manual for significant purchases and/or contracts Lo

. Ensuring that the academy uses Service Level Agreements purchased through the Ioca| councitto its best‘
advantage .

. - . . “ w .
1 T R RN

The purpose of the system ofmternal control R o T P s
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to ellmlnate aII nsk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only. provide reasonable and. not absolute " -
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process; designed to identify

and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Mitton Manor Primary Academy for the year 1 .
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Governors

The school has developed a system of controls and checks and the Headteacher and Business manager hold
regular meetings to review the finances. The Business Manager is in attendance at all governing body finance

. meetings and holds regular meeting with-the Chair of Finance and personnel committee and responsible office.
The finance Manual details the procedures and systems to be used by all budget holders. A -copy of the manual
is available from the Business manager and polices have been put in place ‘to support procurement etc which.
staff are fully aware of. :

The rlsk and control framework '

The: Academys system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
- and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it mcludes :

‘e comprehensrve budgetrng and monitoring systems with an annual budget and perrodrc financial reports

- which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors -

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes ‘

. settirig targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

° identification and management of risks

. The Board of Governors has decided not to appoint an internal auditor. However, the Governors have appointed '
Patricia Clements, a Governor, to carry out a programme of internal checks.

The reviewer's roIe'incIudes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on
the Academy's financial systéms. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included ensuring the
purchasing system was appropriately authorised and that income agreed to source documentation.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As accounting. officer, the Head Teacher has responsrbrllty for reviewing the effectuveness of the system of .
- internal control. Dunng the year in questron the review has been informed by:

the work of the non-employed Trustee performaing lnternal checks;

the work of the external auditors; i

the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsrbllrty for the development and
maintenance of the mternal control framework. " y .

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the commrttee and a plan to address weaknesses and’ ensure contmuous |mprovement of the system ’

is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on and S|gned on their behalf by

Patricia Clements
Chair of Trustees

- 6 December 2021

Phillippa Jones
- Accounting Officer

6 December 2021
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- STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Mitton Manor Primary Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Board of -Governors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the Academy Board of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, -or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundmg under the
Academy s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
" to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these quI be notified to the Board of
Governors and ESFA.

Phillippa Jones
Accounting Officer
Date: 6/12/21
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Governors (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting .
Standards (Unlted Klngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and appllcable !aw and regulatlons

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law, the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisﬁed‘that they give a true and

. fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that penod In preparing these fi nanmal statements, the
Governors are required to:

o select suitable accountlng pohmes and then apply them consistently;
.. observe the methods and pnnmples of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts D|rect|on
2020 to 2021; ) :
o make judgements and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent; :
) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
.reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended. .

The Governors are,resbonsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of thé members of the Board of Governors on 6 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
Patricia Clements v . Phillippa Jones’
Chair of Trustees A Accounting Officer
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'MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY

~ Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mitton Manor Primary Academy (the ‘academy') for the year ended
31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
. framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United -Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The

" Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and' Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the,

Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. .

" Inour oplnlon the financial statements.

"~ e give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
3 resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended,;
. e - have been properly prepared in accordance ‘with United Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountlng
. Practice; and
- e " have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP -
' 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng '
Agency. . :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
“law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit -
of the financial statements section of our report. ' We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, mcludlng
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities .in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬂcuent and
appropriate to provide a ba5|s for our oplmon

Conclusions relating to going concern

.In auditing the financial statements we have concluded that the Governors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial. statements is appropriate.

Based.on the work we have performed, we: have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsnbxlltles of the Governors W|th respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. :
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

‘Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Governors are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any. form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
_materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course -of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this.gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a materral
misstatement of this other mformatron we are requrred to report that fact.

' We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinio'rt on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Governors' repdrt including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
~the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. '
. the Governors' report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applrcable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

" In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' report including the Strategic Report.

. We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowrng matters in relatron to which the Companres Act 2006
requrres us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audrt have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or :
. the financial statements are not'in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
) .certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
) we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Page 34



i r - e —— - by S - - - T

-,«c,,i’..‘ ] NEREEN } o ‘ . v
' MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

ke d

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
‘ MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

- As explained more fully in the Governors' responsibilities statement, the Governors (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of fi nanmal statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors ére responsible for -assessing the Academy's abiiity to
‘continue as a:going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using-the going

- concern basis of accounting unless the Governors elther mtend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternatlve but to do so.
Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

- Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
- from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
. accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in  respect of irregularities,

- including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectmg irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

e ‘we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Academy.
These. include but are not limited to compliance with the Companies Act 2006, Financial Reporting.Standard
applicable in the UK, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued
by the Education and Skills Funding-Agency; '

e we agreed the financial statement disclosures to supporting documentation;

e we made enquiries of management; and

"o we reviewed board minutes throughout the year.

- A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at:. www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in-accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no.other purpose. To the fullest
. extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY (CONTINUED)

Ly (o

Ryan Moore CA (Senior statqtory.auditor)

for and on behalf of
-Randall & Payne LLP

" Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Chargrove House

Shurdington Road

_ Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
- GL514GA

" 6 December 2021
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMIY
v K A (A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO MITTON
~ MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY :

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 September 2018 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)-as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Mitton Manor Primary Academy during the year 1 September 2020.to 31 August 2021
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them. :

This report is made solely to Mitton Manor Primary Academy and ESFA'in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Mitton Manor Primary Academy and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to.anyone other than Mitton Manor Primary Academy and
ESFA, for our work; for this report, or for the concluslon we have formed.

Respectlve responsibilities of MIttOﬂ Manor Primary Academy s accounting offlcer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting. officer is responsible, under the requirements of Mitton Manor Primary Academy's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 20 December 2013 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, .for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
“govern them. 4

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to-purposes
~intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in acéordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and .
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with suff C|ent approprlate evidence to express a negatlve conclusion on
" regularity.

‘A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
. consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that

T mlght be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement mcludes exammatlon on a test ba5|s of evudence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.

. We review consistency with the value for money prmcuples in the period;

. We assess compliance with relevant laws and regulation;
. We assess the safeguarding of public funds and assets.
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A cqrﬁpany limited by guarantee) -

INDEPENDENf REPORTING AC'COUNTA.NT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO MITTON
MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Concllu.sion,
~In the course of our work, nothing has come to our ‘attention which suggest in all material reépects the
" expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been

applied to purposes mtended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authontues which
govern them. . .

></) nolol/ 2

‘ Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audltors

’

Date: 6 December 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 . , ™
' Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total . .  Tolal
funds " funds funds funds funds
- 2021 2021 . 2021 . 2021 2020
Note £ - £ £ . £ £
_‘lnco.m‘e from: o | ‘ v ‘
Donations and capltal - S Co
grants 3 : 471 24,916 6,306 - 31,693 - 49,166
Othér trading activities ‘ 4,146 - R 4146 - 7875
Investments -8 - 12 S . - 12 69
fChantabIe actlvmes LT 950,429 - ot 950,429 - 915,026
Other income 7 3,730 - - 3,730 ~ 4,000
e ' ' 8,359 975,345 - 6,306 - 990,010 . 976,136
. .. Total income : : : : . ‘ 4 ‘
Expendlture on: L L ‘ _
o . ' - 1,014,554 - 44,597 1,059,1-51 1,136,550
~ Total expendlture - .
Net movement in '-
funds before other
" recognised ‘ : : R o
" gains/(losses) _ . .8,359. (39,209) (38,291) (69,141) (160,414)
Other recognised .
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on’ ‘
defi ned benefit pension T o D :
schemes . 24 - (161,000) - (161,000) (40,000
:letdmovem_er!t in ‘ RA‘ . 8,359 . (200,209) ... (38,291) (230,141) - (20.0,'414); -
* funds : )
Reconciliation of A , . '
funds: BN ’ : : - )
- Total funds brought : : ) :
‘ ‘forward g 25,824 (543,509) 1,374,882 - - 857,197 1,057,611
-Net movement in funds ' 8,359 (200,209) " (38,291) (239,141) . (200,414)
Total funds carried 4 34,183 .(743,718) 1,336,591 - 627,056 - 857,197
forward :

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in tHe'year. _

The notes on pages 43 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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- MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 08792831 .

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

~

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pehsion liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds 'ex,c’luding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds _
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

-No_te.

.15

16

17

24

18
18

18
18 -

18
18

2021
£
1,326,241
1,326,241
97,688
111,290
208,978
. (157,163)
151,815
1,378,056
1,378,056
(751,000)
627,056
1,336,591
7,282
1,343,873
(751,000
592,873
34,183
627,056

2020

£
1,361,270
1,361,270
63985 - . - .. .
129,320 ‘
93,305
(49,378)
43,927
1,405,197
1,405,197
. (548,000) -
857,197
1,374,882
4,491
1,379,373
(548,000) -
831,373
25,824

857,197
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY

Jf. - (A company Ilmlted by guarantee)
: REGISTERED NUMBER: 08792831

-y

i ., v

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The fi nanC|aI statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions appllcable to entities subject to
the small compames regime. 4

The financial statements on pages 39 to 70 were approved by the Governors and authorised for issue on 06
- December 2021 and are 5|gned on thelr behalf, by: .

Patricia Clements L L ' Miss Phillippa Jones
Chair of Trustees ' S " Accounting Officer

The notes on pages 43 to-70 form part of these financial statements.
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

i - e,

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Cash flows from opefating activities
Net cash provided.by/(used‘ in) operatin'g' activities | A 20
Cash flows from investing activ'i':ti.esl o ’ : : ) 21
- Cha’ﬁge in cash and cash equivalents iﬁ the year R
| Cash and cé;h equi\;élénts at tﬁe‘ bégiﬁhing of the year |
: Caéh and cash equivalents at the end o'f the year ' 2223 |

The nbtés on pages'. 43 to 70 form part of these ﬂhancial statements

- Note-

2021

2020
£ £
85,220 (92467)
'(3,259) : | 2680 R
81,970 (89,787)
B
e A 29,520

Page 42

s

1907



k]
@

" MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

w

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. -

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,

except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended. Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the. Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA the

Chantnes Act 2011 and the Compames Act 2006. :

~Mitton Manor F’nmary Academy meets the def nition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Gomg concern

The Governors‘assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e: whether there are any -
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect.of a
period of at least one year -from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accountlng in prepanng
the financial statements.
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MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee).

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.  Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

Income

All incoming resources are reco'gnised‘w,hen the Academy has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. -

' Legacnes

The recognition of i income from legacies is dependent on establlshmg entltlement the probability of -
receipt and the ability to- estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of
entitlement to a: legacy exists when the Academy has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to
them (through knowledge of the existence of a valid will and the death of the benefactor) and the
executor is satisfied that the property in question will not be required to satusfy claims in the estate.
Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is probable that it will be received and the fair value
of the:amount receivable, which will generally be the expected cash amount.to be distributed to the '
Academy, can be rehably measured. .

Grants

Grants are mcluded in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. ‘The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred

-and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where

entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recogmsed in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which

- it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

a Ilablllty

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflécted in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital -
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended. -

Donations " : .
Donations are recognlsed ona recewable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)

. -: where the receipt’ is probable and the amount can be rellably measured

14

Expenditure . o L . ! :

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit .

to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each. activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are

" not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with

the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use. .

Page 44 -



h . . M,

MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY-
(A company limited by guai_a'ntee_)
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 -

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

Expenditure (continued)

Cha'ritable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support~costs end costs
relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities. -

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured

- reliably by. the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the mterest paid or payable by the

1.6

institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Tanglble fixed assets

- Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible flxed assets and are carried at cost, net of

1.7

deprecaatlon and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have. been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their-expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding

" requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are .credited to a restricted fixed asset

fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestncted funds, deprecuatlon on
such assets is charged to the unrestncted fund.

' Deprematlon is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to

write off the cost of these assets, les their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives
on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property. - 2% on cest

Furniture-and equipment - 20% on cost - -
" Plant and machinery - - 20% on cost
Computer equipment - 33% on cost

A re\}iew for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or qhénges‘ in circumstancés indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying

_ value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as |mpa|rments ‘Impairment

losses are recognised in the Statement of fmanmal activities.
Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount o,ffered'.

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accounting policies (continued)

1.8

1.9

Cash at bank and ih hand

- Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments W|th a short maturity

of three months or less from the date of acqmsmon or openlng of the deposit or similar account.
Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is ‘an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a.transfer of economic benefit will be required insettlement, and the amount

. of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy _
anticipates it will payto settle the debt or the amount it has receuved as advanced payments for the -

goods or services it must provide.

1.10 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial mstruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and S
f nancial Ilabllmes of the Academy and their measurement bases. are as. foIIows

FmanCIa/ assets - trade and other debtors are -basic financial mstruments and are debt mstruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic ﬁnancial instrument and is measured at fac'e value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other, creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as ‘detailed in note 17. Taxatlon and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferréd income is not-deemed to be afinancial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obhgatlon to dellver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. -

1.11 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of f nanc;al acttvmes on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021+

Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Pensions

‘Retirement benefits to employees of the 'Academy are provided by the Teachers" Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the prOJected unit credit method and
discounted .at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as_incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on. the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

‘Actuarial -gains and losses are recognised im'mediately in other recognised gains and losses.
1.13.Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetlng any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed as,set funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received-with restricfions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. ‘

Investment income, gains and Ibsses, are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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‘Cntlcal accountlng estlmates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, mctudlng expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. : :

Critical 'accounting estimates and assumptions:

: The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultlng accounting-
. estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a 5|gn|f|cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. T .

o

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined b'enef'lt tiability ‘depends on a

number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using-a variety-of .assumptions. The = = .

assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial -
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a fuIIv

actuarial valuation would |mpact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted

8756

‘Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £

Donations ‘ : 471 . 24916 - 25,387
Capital Grants o : - - 6,306 6,306

Grants , ‘ . - - - -
471 24,916 6,306 31,693

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ £ £ £
 Donations 8756 21,499 - 30,255
Capital Grants o - - 6,329 - 16,329
Grants ’ A - - 12,582 12,582
21,499 18,911 49,166
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Income from donations and capital grants (continued)

~Funding for the Academy’s educational operationsi

" DfE/ESFA grants
- General Annual Grant
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium and Service Premium
Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM)
. PE and Sports Grant
.+ Local Authority - Special Educational Needs (SEN)
Other Government Revenue Grants

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant
Other DfE/ESFA grants
- Pupil Premium and Service Premium
Universal Infant Free School Meals (U|FSM)
PE and Sports Grant '
* Local Authority - Special Educational Needs (SEN)

Restricted Total
"funds funds
2021 . 2021

£ £
797,779 797,779
28,345 28,345
24,728 24,728 -
53,990 53,990

. 21,405 21,405
' 24,182 - 24182
950,429 950,429
950,429 950,429
Restricted Total
funds funds

2020 2020 . -

- £ £
777,922 777,922
27,022 27,022
34,777 34,777
59,416 59,416
15,889 15,889
915,026 915,026
915,026 915,026

Page 49



MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1

Funding for the Aééde_my‘s educational operations (continued)

b

FoIIbWing the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy's funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals
and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines

under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.

" Income from other trading adtivities

Income from trading activities

‘ In'co,me from trading activities -

Investment income

Investment Income

Investment income

Unrestricted .
.funds .

12021

£

. 4,146

Unrestricted

funds -

2020
£

7,875

Unrestricted

funds
2021

12

Unrestricted

funds
2020
: £

69

£ .

Total
funds
- 2021
£

4,146

Total
‘funds

2020

7,875

Total
funds
2021

12

Total .
funds

. 2020

-69
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Other incoming resources

Total

Unrestricted
funds funds
12021 2021
£ £
Other income 3730 3,730
“Unrestricted . Total .
funds funds
2020 2020
£ £
Other income 4,000 4,000
Expehd’iture '
Staff Costs  Premises Other Total
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ ' £ £ £
‘Educatiohal Operations:
Direct costs 649,091 - 70,708 719,799
Allocated support costs 139,682 19,720 179,950 339,352
788,773 . 19,720 250,658 1,059,151
Staff Costs  Premises Other Total
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ . £ £ £
* Educational Operations: .
Direct costs - 700,551 7,125 62,361 770,037
Allocated support costs 141,776 ‘ - 224,737 . 366,513
- 842,327 7,125 287,098

1,136,550
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9. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund type

Educational Operations .

Educational Operatidné

10. Analysis of ekpenditure by activities

o Activities
: undertaken

directly

2021

£

Educational Operations _ ' 719,799

\ ' : . {

Activities
undertaken
directly

’ 2020
£

Educational Operations | : - 770,037 -

" Restricted

funds
2021

£

1,059,151.

Restricted
funds
'...'2020

1,136,550

Support
. costs

2021

£

339,352

- Support

. costs -

2020

'366,513

£.

£ .

Total
funds
- 2021

£

11,059,151

- -Total-
funds
.- 2020

1,136,550 <

~ Total

. Afunds

2021
£

. 1,059,151

-+ Total
funds
2020 -

£

1,136,550
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10.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (confinued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Depreciation ~ *

" - Educational supplies

Educational consultancy
Other staff costs -
Technology costs

. Other -

Cleaning and caretaking:

Staff costs

Depreciation
Educational supplies
Educational consultancy

© ‘Other staff costs

Technology costs
Other.

Total

Educational
‘Operations funds
2021 2021
£ £
- 649,091 649,091
7,033 7,033
27,678 27,678
7,418 7,418
5,769 5,769
476 . 476
21,839 21,839
495 495
719,799 719,799
- Educational Total
Operations funds
© 2020 2020
£ £
©. 699,551, 699,551
10,164 10,164
25,399 25,399
3,435 *3,435
5027 5,027
7,473 7,473
18,988 18,988
770,037 770,037
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10."

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued) .

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs -
‘Staff costs
- Depreciation _.

Insurance
Other
Maintenance of premises

‘Cleaning and caretaking

Rates

- Energy.

Security

Catering

Legal & professional
,j\uditor costs -

Educational Total
. Operations. " funds
. 2021 2021.
£ L E
9000 - 9,000
139,682 © 139,682
37564 37,564
4656 4,656
21,219 21,219
119720 19,720
18,879 18,879
4,789 4,789
13,659  ° 13,659
280 280.
30,839 30,839
30,290 30,290
8,775 -,8,775
339,352 - 339,352
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10.

/

Analysis of expenditure by activities (cohtinued)

Ahalyéis of support costs (continued)

" “'Pension finance costs
- . Staff costs.

Depreciation

“! “iInsurance

1.

‘Other

‘Maintenance of premises
- Cleaning and caretaking
" Operating lease rentals
- ‘Rates o

: Enérgy

- Security

.Transport
- -Catering
- Legal & professional
.. Auditor costs

Net incomel(expendi:ture) '

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

- Operating lease rentals
‘Depreciation of tangible fixed assets -

Fees paid to auditors for:

" - audit

- other services

_ Educational

Total

Operations funds
2020 2020

£ £
9,000 9,000
141,776 141,776
47,328 47,328

. 7,066 7,066

" 19,594 19,594 .

20,768 20,768
19,486 19,486
2814 2,814
7,852 7,852
8,629 8,629
280 280

48 48
44,360 44,360
28,684 28,684
8,828 8,828
366,513 366,513
2021 2020

£ £
12,992 2,646
44,597 57,492
6,125 6,050
2,820 2,730
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Staff

a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

o 4 . _ £ £
Wages and salaries \ - o 566,560 600,603
‘Social security costs: o . - 49,773 - . 52315

Pension costs Lo S 7 172,053 - 182,681

' 788,386 835,599

Agency staff costs . 4 A .- 388 . 5728
Staff restructuring costs ) . _ ‘ - - 9,667

, 788,774 - 850,894

Staff restructuring costs cor_nprise:'

2021 2020
. , , £ £
Redundancy payments : ' o - 9,567

- . 9567

' b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

. 2021 - 2020

No. No.
Teachers . 4 | 9 - 9
Administration and support o . S .. 18 17
Management ' - o 3 _ 3
.27 29

c. Higher paid staff

The number of empldyees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was: : . '
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12.

13.

14.

Staff (continued)
c.'Higher paid staff (continued)
2021 2020

. ~No. : No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 . ‘ ' . ‘ 1

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for

‘their servuces to the Academy was £169,654 (2020 - £223,065).

. Governors' remuneration and expenses -

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide. undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows: '

2021 2020
. : . : : £ ' £
Miss Phillippa Jones, Headteacher Remuneration 50,000- . 60,000 -
' ‘ 55,000 - 65,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 10,000 -
A 15,000 15,000 .

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no Governor expenses have been incurged' (2020 - £NIL).

Governors' and Officers’ insurance

In accordance with -normal commercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the
year ended 31 August 2021 was included within the RPA agreement but is not seperable.

Page 57



MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY

(A ‘company limited by guarantee)

s e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL .STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 . -

15.

16.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2020
Additions

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation

At 1 September 2020
- Charge for the year

At 31 August 2021

Net book value

At 31 August 2021

. At 31 August 2020

Long-term Furniture
leasehold and - . Computer .
property - equipment . equipment Total -
£ £ £ £
1,473,000 163855 61,072 1,698,827
- 8,572 ' 996 9,568
1:,473,000 172,427 62,968 - 1,708,395 -
/163,800 19,724 '54 033 337,557
23,400 14,164 - 7,033 - 44,597
187,200 133,888 61,066 382,154
1,285,800 38,539 1,902 1,326,241
1,309,200 44,131 7,939 1,361,270

Included in land and bundlngs is long term leasehold land at a valuation of £303 000 (2020 £303 OOO) for
which depreuatuon is not applicable.

The leasehold property was granted by the Local Authorlty ona125 year lease with a peppercorn rent

over the land.

Debtors

- Due within one year

Trade debtors
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

2021 2020
£ £

284 18,456
13,608 13,676
83,796 31,853
97,688 63,985
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' 17.  Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

~ Trade creditors
Accruals and deferred income

2020

2021

£ £

(232) 1,911
157,395 47,467
157,163 49,378

Page 59.



MITTON MANOR PRIMARY ACADEMY.

(A company limited by guarantee) .

-

'NOTES TO THE FerANCI_AL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

18.

Statement of funds

Unrestricted

funds

General Funds -
all funds

' Restrictéd
- general funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Youth sports -
funding

Pupil Premiun{

High-Needs Top
Up

Donations
UiFSM

Covid Grant
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed . .

asset funds

Fixed Assets
DFC
CIF Window -

_ Grarit _
_ CIF Roof Grant

Total Restricted
" fu nds.

. Balance at 1
September ' ' Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure in/out {Losses) . 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
25,824 8,359 - . ] 34,183
. 797,779, (790,497) - . 7,282
4,491 17,084  (21,575) . - - -
- 28,345 (28,345) - . .
- 21,405  (21,405) 3 . ]
- 61,822 (61,822) - - . -
. 24,728 (24/728) . - .. .
- - 24182 (24,182) - - -
. (548,000) - (42,000) - (161,000) - (751,000)
(543,509) 975345  (1,014,554) - (161,000)  (743,718)
1,361,270 . - (44,597) © 9,568 - 1,326,241
11,464 6,306 - (9,568) - 8202
1,380 - - - - 1,380 |
768 - - . - 768
11,374,882 6,306 (44,597) - - 1,336,591
- 831,373 981,651  (1,059,151) . (161,000) 592,873
857,197 990,010 ' (1,059,151) - (161,000) 627,056

Total funds

Balance at
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18.

-Statement of funds (continued)

. The specific purposes for which the funds are to-be‘applbied are as foIIows

Restricted GAG Fund/ Other DfE/ESFA grants and LA grants - these funds represent grants received for
the Academy s operational activities and development ‘ .

The Pupil Premium fund and deficit from the LA were amounts transferred in on- conver‘sion‘ Pupil

' Premium has been pooled with other DfE/ESFA grants and the deficit has been recovered by the ESFA

from monthly remittances of GAG in 201 8/19

Other restricted funds include parental contrlbutlons for trips etc.

:*CIF and DFC capital grants - these grants relate to funding received from the ESFA to carry out works of |
' a capltal nature

Donated Fixed Asset Fund - this is the fund value of assets brought into the Academy the appropriate’
deprecratlon is being charged to this fund on an annual basis.

“Under the fundlng agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a Irmrt on the

amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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18. .

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

" Unrestricted
~funds

General Funds -
all funds

Restricted

general funds -

General Annual

Grant (GAG)

Youth sports
- funding

Pupil Premium

- Other ESFA .
"Grants .

"High Needs Top

Up

- Donations

UiFSM
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
asset funds
F|xed Assets
DFC :

CIF Window-
Grant

CIF_ Roof Grant
S$106 Monies -

" Balance at Balance at

1 September Transfers - Gains/ 31 August

2019 Income = Expenditure infout (Losses) . 2020

£ - £ £ £ £ £

81,919 20,633 (7,101), . (69,627) ... .- 25,824
26,032 777,922 (870,'061) 66,107 - -
7,716 17,770 - (20,995) - - 4,491

- 21,022 (27,022) - - .

- 41,713 (41,713) - - .

- 15889 = (15,889) - - .

- 21,499 (21,499) - - -

- 34,777 . (34,777) - - .
(468,000) - (41,000) - '(39,000) (548,000)
(434,252) 936,592 \‘*('1,072,956) 66,107 (39,000) - . (543,509)
1,402,462 - (57,492) 16,300 - 1,361,270

5333 6,329 - - (198) - (11,464
- 1,380 - - - - - 1380

768 - - - - 768

- 12,582 - (12,582) - -

- 1,409,943 18,911 (57,492) - 3520 - 1,374,882
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18.  Statement of funds (continued)
Balance at . ‘ i . ) : _Balance at
"1 September _ : ' Transfers ~Gains/ .. 31 August
2019 - . Income Expenditure infout . (Losses) - 2020
£ £ £ _ £ £ ' £ -

Total Restricted : N o : .
~ funds ‘ 975,691 955,503  (1,130,448) 69,627 (39,000) 831,373
Totalfunds . 1,057,610 976136 (1,137,549) - - (39,0000 857,197

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances for each academy at 31 August 2021 and 31 August 2020 were zero, hence a breakdown ‘
by academy is not included in these accounts.

Total cost anélysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during ihe year was as follows:

Teaching
and - ) I
educational Other ) Other costs :
support - support Educational excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation . 2021
£ ' £ £ £ - £
Mitton Manor Primary Academy 634,091 ' 154,682 - 34,498. 201,056 - 1,024,327
Cdmparative information in respect of the precéding year is as follows:
Teaching
and . . .
educational Other " Other costs .
support staff support staff  Educational excluding - Total
costs . costs supplies  depreciation 2020
£ £ : £ £ £
Mitton Manor Primary Academy 700,551 -140, 776 25,399 212,332 1,079,058
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19.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds -}current‘ year

Total

(543,509)

_ , Restricted
- Unrestricted : Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ ' £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - - 1,326241 1,326,241
" Current assets . 34,183 164,445 10,350 208,978
Creditors due within one _year ' v ' - (157,163) i -t (157,163) - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges - S - (751,000) _ - (751,000)
Total . K N 34,183  (743,718) 1,336,591 - . 627,056
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year A
Restricted : .
Unrestricted ~ Restricted  fixed asset “Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ £ . £ £
Tangible fixed assets | . - 1,361,270 1,361,270
" Current assets ' 25,823 53,870 13,612 93,305
Creditors due within one year ' - 1 (49,379) ' - (49,379)
" Provisions for liabilities and charges ' ' - (548,000) - .- (548,000) .
25,823 - 1,374,882

857,196
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20.

21,

22,

Reconciliation of net éxpenditqre to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 .- 2020
£ £
Net expenditure for the year (_as per Statement of financial activities) ] (69,141) (160,414)
Adjustments for: . , o
Depreciation : ‘ 44,597 57,492
" Capital grants from DfE and other capital income - o (6,306) (18,911)
Dividends, interest and rents from investments ‘ - (12) (69)
increase in debtors ' . (33,703) (32,391)
" Increase in creditors . - . . ' ‘ 107,785 21,826
LGPS adjustment : : ‘ : _ 42,000 40,000
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities ‘ -85,220 (92,467)
Cash flows from investing activities
2021 - 2020
. £ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments ’ - B 12 69
Purchase of tangible assets ‘ (9,568) (16,300)
Capital grants from DfE Group ' ‘ 6,306 18,911
Net cash (used in)/providéd by investing activities : (3,250) 2,680
Analysis of cash and cash equivalénts
2021 2020
' £ £
Cash in hand and at bank . 2 A . 111,290 29,320
" Total cash and cash equivalents ~ - - 111,290 29,320.
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23.

24,

Analysis of changes in net'debt

At 1

September . At 31.'
2020 Cash flows August 2021
A £ £ £
Caish at bank and in hand 29,320 81,970 111,290
29,320 81,970 111,290

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme _
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme

(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund. Both

are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

' The latest actuanal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31

March 2019.

There 'were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme ‘

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contrlbutory defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS foIIowmg enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are pald by publlc funds provided by Parllament .
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Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS

" in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014

published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The-latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out-as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educatlon on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

) ‘employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (mcludmg a 0 08% admmlstratlon
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benef its) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £1 96 100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is. 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%. : :

. The next valuation result is due to be |mplemented from 1 April 2023.

. The employers pension costs pald to TPS in the year amounted to £100,877 (2020 - £103 518)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website .
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is-an unfunded multi-employer pensioh scheme. The ‘
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £52,000 (2020.-
£54,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £43,000 (2020 - £46,000) and employees'

contributions totalled £ 9,000 (2020 - £9,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 29.1 per
cent for employers and between 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the -employees of the Academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who

- were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who

transferred on conversion represents their cumulatlve service at both the predecessor school and the:
Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions '

Rate of increase in salaries _
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

2021
oy,

3.2

29 ..
. 1.65

2020
e

2.5
S22
1.7

The current mortality éssumptions include sufficient allowance for _futdre imp'rpvements, in morta|'ity 'rétés.: .

The assumed life expectations on retirement-age 65 are:

Retiring today

Males

Females '

Retiring in 20 years '
Males '
Females\

A Sensitivity analysis

Salary rate +0.5%

~ Discount rate -0.5%

Pension rate +0.$%

Share of séheme assets

" The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was: -

Equities

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value‘of assets

't

2020

. 2021
Years Years
c 219 21.7°
24.3 23.7
229 224
- 26.0. 25.3
2021 2020
£000 £000
25 19
195 . 151
165 129
2021 .2020
£ £
486,000 358,000
146,000 125,000
49,000 43,000
14,000 16,000
695,000

542,000
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2021 2020
' £ £
.Current service cost ' ‘ S (76,000) (77,000)
" Past service cost - o : ' - (1,000)
© U Interestincome: . - ... 10,000 10,000.
* . Interest cost ' . : .. (19,000) (19,000) -
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities (85,000) ~ (87,000)
Changes in the-présent value of the defined benefit obligation_s were aé follows:
' 2021 2020
A o £ ' £
At 1 September . - . "~ 1,090,000. ' 974,000 -
~Interest cost . o o 19,000 19,000
Employee contributions - R 9,000 9,000
"* Actuarial losses ~ : 258,000 17,000
Benefits paid - = o _ . (6,000) (6,000)
Current service.cost : ' _ 76,000 77,000
" At31August : . | 1,446,000 1,090,000
Changes in the fair \)alue of the Academy's share of scheme assets 'were'as foIIdWs:
| 2021 2020
At 1 September - S ‘ © 542,000 506,000
- Interest income o : - 10,000 10,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) A S 97,000 (23,000)
Employer contributions ' ' ‘ - 43,000 46,000
Employee contributions - ' : _ o 9,000 9,000 .
Benefits paid o . ’ ' (6,000) . (6,000) - -
At 31 August - : ' | 695,000 © 542,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £1 32,000 (2020 -£1 6,000).

Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial éctivities are as foIIovAvs:'-
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26.

. 27,

' Operatmg lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operatlng Ieases as foIIows

2021 - 2020'

. | | A
Not later than 1 year - ’ ' . - 243 1,984
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ~~ * L 899 -

1142 1,984

Members llablllty

Each member of the charitable company ‘undertakes to contribute to the assets of the cémpany’in the
event-of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing-to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
governors have an interest: All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, in¢luding notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academys financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related
party transactions. :
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